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Date:		January 27, 2025
To:		City Council
Through:	Marc Heirshberg, Deputy City Manager

From:		Scott Bouchie, Energy and Sustainability Director
		Anthony Cadorin, Energy Resources Program Manager

Subject:	Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Queen Creek for the Design of a Natural Gas Line
		City Project No. CP1159

Purpose and Recommendation

The Energy Resources Department is requesting City Council approval of a Resolution authorizing the City of Mesa (“Mesa”) to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) with the Town of Queen Creek (“Queen Creek”) for the design of a high-pressure natural gas line.

Staff recommends that City Council approve the IGA and Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into this IGA on behalf of Mesa.  The cost of the design is $189,288.74.

Background

Mesa operates a natural gas utility that provides service to two major service areas: 1) the Mesa System which is approximately 90-square miles primarily within City limits, and 2) the Magma System which is approximately 236-square miles located southeast of the City in Pinal County. Mesa’s combined natural gas system comprised of 1,596 miles of distribution mains as of December 2024 and as of November 2024 served 44,457 customers on the Mesa System and 34,003 customers on the Magma System.
 
Mesa has entered into two agreements to provide infrastructure to the LG Energy Solution (“LG”) Arizona facility in Pinal County (“the Project”) from its Magma natural gas system.  During the initial discussions for serving the Project, Queen Creek and Mesa intended to combine Mesa’s natural gas infrastructure project with the road, water, and wastewater projects.  Queen Creek hired a consultant who prepared comprehensive utility designs including a design for Mesa’s natural gas infrastructure.  The gas design was completed and stored pending Mesa and LG’s continued negotiations on the Project.  Mesa ultimately has used the prepared gas design to construct the 12” high pressure infrastructure that has been installed along Germann Road and Ironwood Road.   Therefore, Mesa ‘s reimbursement to Queen Creek for the gas utility design cost is now required.

Discussion

Queen Creek hired Stanley Consultants, an engineering design consulting firm, to complete the initial designs for all involved Project utilities when Project negotiations began in 2022 and 2023.  The original intention was Queen Creek would administer and manage the construction of all Project utilities to avoid potential coordination issues.  A Resolution was presented and approved by Mesa City Council on May 5,2023 authorizing Mesa to enter into a different IGA with Queen Creek in which Queen Creek would both design and construct the natural gas infrastructure on Mesa’s behalf.  That former IGA was not ultimately executed by Mesa and so this IGA replaces the former one in its entirety.

Due to differing negotiation paces between Mesa and Queen Creek with LG, respectively, Mesa ultimately elected not to have Queen Creek manage the natural gas infrastructure construction so the May 2023 IGA was never executed by Mesa.  As negotiations continued with LG, Mesa has since executed two agreements (separate from the IGA) with LG for the construction of all the natural gas facilities required to serve the first factory at the Project site near Ironwood Rd and Germann Rd in Pinal County.  These two agreements together address 1) the construction of a 12” 1.75 mile-long high-pressure natural gas line and 2) a large high-pressure natural gas meter set.  Construction of the high-pressure natural gas line has been completed.  Although the pipeline is complete, Mesa is still in design for the large high-pressure natural gas meter set required to serve the property and the completion of natural gas service to the Project is expected in 2025.  Queen Creek and Mesa have made substantial progress on the most time sensitive Project deliverables and both parties wish to complete this remaining payment for the gas utility design.

Alternatives

The City Council could choose not to enter this IGA.  This is not recommended because the design has already been completed at Queen Creek’s expense and construction has been completed on the associated infrastructure.

Fiscal Impact

The total fiscal impact of this IGA is $189,288.74 which will be reimbursed to Queen Creek.  These funds will be recovered through the Line Extension Agreement between Mesa and LG.


Coordinated With

This IGA has been coordinated with the Engineering Department and the City Attorney’s Office.
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